
 

                                                      
 
   * A Quorum of the City Council may be present.  
 

AGENDA  
NEW BRIGHTON PLANNING COMMISSION    
REGULAR MEETING    
   
TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2011    
7:00 P.M. 
 
1. Call to Order:        
  
2. Roll Call: 

  
 
Bruce 
Howard 

  
 
James Alvey 

  
 
Norm 
Schiferl 

  
 
Verne 
McPherson 

  
 
Steve 
Danger   

  
 
Paul Zisla 

  
 
Erin Nichols 
Matkaiti 

  

    
 
3. Agenda Review 
 
4.   Approval of Minutes   

(A) February 15, 2011 
 
5.  Report on Council Action:     Mr. David Phillips, City Council Member   
 
6. Public Hearings 

 
(A) Patrick Kinney requests consideration of a Special Use Permit to allow 

encroachment on the required 30’ front yard setback for a front entryway 
addition at 2089 Mississippi Circle. 

 
(B) Andy Bryce on behalf of CU Auto Resource Center requests consideration of a 

Special Use Permit to allow automotive sales at 877 3rd Street SW, Suite #6. 
 
(C)  Bruce Thompson on behalf of Ramsey County Property Management requests 

consideration of a Site Plan and Special Use Permit to allow construction of a 
19’ x 77’ building addition at 400 10th Street NW (New Brighton Family Service 
Center) to accommodate a new 6,175 square foot Ramsey County branch 
library. 

 
7. Acknowledgment of Years of Service for Commissioners Zisla & Schiferl 
 
8. Adjourn:   _______________ 
 
  

WORKSESSION (to follow regular meeting, if time permits) 
 

Landscaping Standards 
 





1

Not Approved

PLANNING COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS

Regular Meeting – February 15, 2011 7:00 p.m.

Present: Commissioners Bruce Howard, James Alvey, Steve Danger, Paul Zisla Norm Schiferl, Verne
McPherson and ErinNichols-Matkaiti

Absent: Councilmember Phillips

Also Present: Janice Gundlach-City Planner, and Katie Bruno-Office Assistant.

Agenda Review: Chairperson Bruce Howard suggested the following additional information be added
following the Public Hearings:

 Upcoming Seminars.
 Clearwire update.

Minutes: Minutes from January 18, 2011 were presented and approved.

Council Action: There was not a council liaison present at the meeting.

Public Hearing:
A) Anna Miranda requests consideration of a Special Use Permit to allow operation of an

event center at 400 Old Highway 8 NW.

City Planner Gundlach reported the applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to permit operation of a
“Multi-Purpose Area” (also being termed an event center) at 400 Old Highway 8 NW. This site is the
former American Tri-City Legion, who has since sold the building and no longer is in operation
Staff determined there were three major issues of concern with regard to the event center; types of
events, parking, and hours of operation. While these issues were a cause for concern, it was noted that
the Legion operated in a similar manner, and to City staff’s knowledge no issues were reported (aside
from maintenance). Major difference is the applicant’s events are likely to involve public admission
where the Legion primarily held private events. Ms. Gundlach reported there is a concern of a nightclub-
like atmosphere, so a security plan is required. The main parking concern is that general numbers
suggest there is a 29 stall shortage – assuming all three uses function separately – which is probably not
the case. Shared parking to north and a valet system have both been explored by applicant.
The following information was shared regarding the hours of operation:
Bar & restaurant can be open until 2 am according to State Law – City cannot impose further
restrictions as the restaurant and bar are permitted uses.
City can restrict hours on the event center in an effort to mitigate any negative impacts that might result
to the neighborhood.
Hours of operation can control the crowd dispersion into the neighborhood and help to minimize noise.
Monday – Thursday: close at 10pm
Friday – Sunday: close at 12 midnight – stop serving alcohol at 11:30pm
Music & audible voice will be prohibited at the property boundaries.
With conditions, staff believes the use will function much like Legion did and not pose negative
impacts to the neighborhood.
83 notices were sent out, three inquiries were received, none in writing.



2

Not Approved

Ms. Gundlach stated it is the staff recommendation to recommend the City Council approve the Special
Use Permit, consistent with the following 10 conditions:
1. Uses limited to live music, family shows, trade shows, community meetings, and private events.
2. Physical contact events prohibited.
3. Occupancy loads cannot exceed 267.
4. Live entertainment uses open to the public admitting more than 100 persons must include a security

plan approved by Public Safety.
5. On-street parking is prohibited.
6. Fence in rear yard is replaced/repaired as necessary.
7. Fence surrounding dumpster area is replaced/repaired as necessary.
8. No music or audible voice is detectable at property boundaries.
9. Multi-functional area closes at 10pm, Monday-Thursday and 12 midnight Friday – Sunday. No

liquor served past 11:30pm.
10. Inspection required by staff prior to opening for business.

Commissioner Schiferl questioned how 100 people would be defined.
Ms Gundlach responded the applicant will be responsible to check ID at the door, and maintain a running
total of those in the event center.
Commissioner Alvey noted condition number 8 is not very objective: No music or audible voice is
detectable at property boundaries. Ms. Gundlach suggested the language could be changed to be more
objective, and she would talk to the City Attorney. Commissioner Zisla noted the music part of the
condition is clear, however the parking lot restriction, is broad.
Commissioner Schiferl asked if there were many noise complaints from the Legion. Ms. Gundlach noted
she was not aware of any, however Public Safety may have a record of complaints.
Commissioner Danger noted he has observed when a club closes down, patrons tend to be loud.

Chairperson Howard opened the Public Hearing at 7:22 pm.

Anna Miranda stated she has a security plan to lessen the problem with parking lot noise. Patrons will be
directed to leave the premises immediately, and not be allowed to loiter in the parking lot.
Commissioner Zisla asked for a description of Public Events. Ms Miranda responded they may bring a
special singer, tickets will be sold for the event. Live music events may be once a week, although
specifics are not yet known.
Commissioner Danger questioned where the valet parkers will park cars. Ms. Miranda stated she has
been talking to her neighbor to the north.
Commissioner Schiferl noted the conditions run with the land and not the business.
Commissioner Nichols-Matkaiti asked Ms. Miranda what her experience and background area is. Ms.
Miranda stated she is the President of a non-profit organization, and events can provide a great
fundraising opportunity. She also has restaurant experience.
Commissioner Danger questioned how they will control the patrons from going to the bar then back to
the Event Center with their cocktail. Ms. Miranda requested being permitted to serve alcohol until 1:00
am. Commissioner Zisla and Ms. Gundlach suggested amending certain conditions in the future, based
on historical data.
Commissioner Danger also expressed concern with the patrons from the Event Center moving into the
bar and not leaving the facility. Ms. Miranda noted this is the first time she has had a business with three
separate uses, and was not completely sure how everything would play out.
Commissioner Zisla questioned the possible number of patrons that may be visiting the facility. City
Planner Gundlach reported the Fire Code occupancy maximums, noting the following, 136 for the



3

Not Approved

restaurant, 455 for the bar and 267 allocated to the multi functional events. Ms. Gundlach noted these
numbers are subject to change due to variables. Ms. Gundlach noted she used an American Planning
Publication to determine the parking recommendation for the Event Center, as the City Code does not
address that.
Commissioner Schiferl questioned where employee parking fits, Ms. Gundlach noted it is figured into the
total. Commissioner Schiferl questioned the procedures for a really popular event, and if patrons cannot
get into the event center. Ms. Miranda stated that she has never encountered that dilemma; typically
advance tickets are sold, so the number is known in advance. Commissioner Zisla questioned if the
Zoning Code would allow live music in the bar and restaurant. Ms. Gundlach stated it is a permitted use.
City Planner Gundlach clarified the multi functional pieces of the application are what is triggering the
Special Use Permit. Commissioner Howard questioned if the applicant could use the space in the
building as a bar and restaurant, using the entire space. Ms Gundlach noted that would be a permitted
use; however the building currently has three very distinct areas. Ms. Gundlach provided clarification
between public and private events.
Commissioner Nichols-Matkaiti questioned if a ticketed event would be considered a public event.
Ms. Gundlach explained the intent was that any person from the public, who can enter, would constitute
a public event, regardless of advance ticket sales.
Commissioner Schiferl questioned if the City has any recourse regarding the liquor license. Ms.
Gundlach explained she does not manage the liquor license, and is not aware of all of the requirements.

Patrick Rother, 490 9th Ave NW made the following comments:
 Could the outdoor lighting be modified?
 Overflow parking
 Property clean up/maintenance
 Loading and unloading of equipment late at night
 Could a 10:00 pm closing be imposed on Sundays?
 It was noted, noise was heard from the tri-city legion.
 Other noise complaints include dumping bottles early on the morning, revving car motors, car

alarms.
 A defined smoking area was requested.

Mr. Rother asked if the Special Use Permit conditions still apply to a different use. Ms. Gundlach
reported the conditions only apply to the Special Use Permit which is the Event Center.
The question was asked by Mr. Rother if there is a concern with patrons moving from the event center to
the bar. Ms. Gundlach explained that will be the responsibility of the owner to monitor that.
Mr. Rother stated he is not opposed to the annual after parade event during Stockyard Days.
City Planner Gundlach noted that could be done as a private event, but the conditions would have to be
met.
Commissioner Schiferl noted almost everything could require a security plan. Commissioner Zisla
questioned if the Legion had security present for a wedding. Commissioner Schiferl stated he would like
to start out conservatively, with the option of future changes to the Special Use Permit. Commissioner
Nichols Matkaiti suggested removing the “live entertainment” component as a DJ night could draw just
as large of a crowd as live entertainment.
City Planner Gundlach reported Public Safety is in favor reviewing the security plan.
Commissioner Howard stated he feels good with the staff recommendation, and is happy to bring a
business to town that many can take advantage of. Commissioner Schiferl stated the following:
1.) He is in favor of setting a 10:00 pm Sunday closing time.
2.) He is concerned if the applicant cannot obtain a parking agreement with the northerly neighbor as
anticipated.



4

Not Approved

Commissioner Zisla clarified the concern was with the possible overspilling of patrons into the
neighborhood. It was thought that by controlling parking, an overall control would follow.
Commissioner Zisla suggested a formal agreement for parking (additional 29 stalls) be made between
Anna Miranda and the northerly neighbor. Ms. Gundlach suggested adding the following language to
bullet point No. 4 to include ”including a parking plan to address use of an additional 29 stalls.”
Commissioner Danger questioned if Ms. Mirnada can get a written agreement from a neighbor. City
Planner Gundlach stated there a couple ways Ms. Miranda can proceed. She could get a permanent
shared parking easement, or an event by event basis.
Commissioner McPherson made a motion, Commissioner Zisla seconded to:

 Adjust item Number 4 as suggested, and direct staff to create language addressing parking
arrangements in the event more than 100 patrons are expected.

 Adjust item Number 9 to read Friday and Saturday until midnight.
Ms. Miranda stated that the proposed hours of operation are not conducive to her business, and suggested
a 1:00 am closing time would be fair. Commissioner Zisla noted it would probably be ok to keep the
event center open until 1:00 am, with the restriction of liquor sales stopping earlier. Commissioner
Schiferl noted the problem is the property is located so close to a residential area.
Ms. Miranda asked for a chance to prove she will operate in compliance. Commissioner Danger noted he
understand Ms. Miranda’s concerns related to hours of operation, and feels any problems will get
resolved via the Public Safety Department.
A resident living directly behind the property stated she is concerned with the later hours of operations
especially on Sundays, and requested a 10:00 pm closing be required.

Motion by Commissioner Zisla, seconded by Commissioner Schiferl to close the Public Hearing.

7 Ayes, 0 nays, Public hearing was closed at 8:45 pm.

Ms. Gundlach noted the restaurant requires 31 parking stalls, the bar requires 41 stalls, leaving 38 of the
total 110 for the event center. The parking ratio used to determine the needed 72 stalls was based on 1
stall per 4 persons. Based on that formula, 152 people would be allowed. Ms. Gundlach suggested
including a condition for any persons over 152, for every 4 persons, 1 other stall would be required.

Commissioner McPherson suggested the following hours of operation be required:
A: Hours of operation for Sunday-Thursday 10:00 pm.
B. Hours of operation for Friday-Saturday 1:00 am, with alcohol not being served past 12:30.

Commissioner Schiferl suggested more time between the time alcohol is stopped being served and
closing time. Commissioner Danger stated he feels it would be reasonable to allow liquor to be sold until
1:00 am on Friday and Saturday nights, provided the business remains problem fee. Commissioner Zisla
expressed concern with the bar and event center closing at the same time.

Motion by Commissioner Zisla, seconded by Commissioner McPherson to approve staff
recommendation with the following two amendments to condition number 9. .
A: Hours of operation for Sunday-Thursday 10:00 pm.
B: Hours of operation for Friday and Saturday 1:00 am, with alcohol not being served past 12:30.

6 Ayes, 1 Nay, motion carried.
Ayes: Commissioner Howard, Zisla, Alvey, Nichols-Matkaiti, Schiferl, and McPherson



5

Not Approved

Nays: Commissioner Danger

Ms. Gundlach suggested two ways to address the parking issue:
1. Could add additional language to the fourth bullet point that says
“The applicant has to provide as part of the security plan, a plan to address overflow parking if needed”
or
2. An event that admits more than 150 people has to provide more parking.
Commissioner Zisla commented he preferred the second option, because of the specificity.
Ms. Gundlach stated the revised condition as follows:

Any event consisting of live entertainment open to the public and admission of more than 100
persons must include a security plan submitted and approved by the Public Safety Department at least
7 days in advance of the event. Events admitting more than 150 persons require that the applicant
secure additional parking at a ratio of 1 stall to every 4 persons, and that be included as part of the
security plan.

Motion by Commissioner Zisla, seconded by Commissioner Danger to amend condition number 4
as stated by the City Planner.

Commissioner Schiferl wanted to clarify the staff would have the ability to make any adjustments as
needed following review by Public Safety. Commissioner McPherson would like to see less specific
wording.

6 Ayes, 1 Nay, motion carried.
Ayes: Commissioner Howard, Zisla, Alvey, Nichols-Matkaiti, Schiferl, and Danger
Nays: Commissioner McPherson

Commissioner Zisla noted he had concern with condition number 8: No music or audible voice is
detectable at the property boundaries.
Commissioner Howard asked if that condition would include noises other than music or audible voice
(loading and unloading.) Ms. Gundlach stated the intent is to include loading and unloading, and this
would be monitored by complaints received. Ms. Gundlach explained most other noises are covered
under the nuisance code.
Commissioner Nichols Matkaiti suggested adding the word “opponent” to condition Number 2, to avoid
any confusion with dancing as a contact sport. Ms. Gundlach reported the Public Safety Department
drafted the language and she would look into that further.

Motion by Commissioner Zisla, seconded by Commissioner Schiferl to move approval staff
recommendation with the amendments to Number 4, and Number 9.

7 Ayes, 0 nays, Motion Carried

(B) City of New Brighton requests consideration of a Preliminary Plat impacting
property on the east side of Old Highway 8 NW within the Northwest Quadrant
Redevelopment Area, creating four outlots, to be known as Outlots A – D,
NORTHWEST QUADRANT EAST.



6

Not Approved

City Planner Gundlach reported City staff is requesting Preliminary Plat approval, to be known as
NORTHWEST QUADRANT EAST, which would allow assembly of existing parcels within the
Northwest Quadrant Redevelopment Area. The area specifically included in the preliminary plat is all
the land on the east side of Old Highway 8 NW, north of I-694, west of I-35W, and south of 14th Street
NW. The land would be assembled into four separate outlots and approximately 5.6 acres would be
dedicated for roadway purposes. The Planning Commission is being asked to consider the preliminary
plat at this time in an effort to clear title and assemble land in preparation for future development. Final
plat consideration will follow preliminary plat approval, where the lots will legally be created into four
outlots.

Commissioner McPherson asked the reason for the request. Ms. Gundlach reported the 11 parcels have
many legal descriptions that overlap and have gaps due to poor surveys in the past. It was reported that
developers prefer clean title, and staff hopes to expedite development in the future.

Motion by Commissioner Alvey, seconded by Commissioner Danger to close the Public Hearing.

7 Ayes, 0 nays, Public hearing was closed at 9:14 pm.

Motion by Commissioner Zisla, seconded by Commissioner Schiferl to approve staff
recommendation

7 Ayes, 0 nays, Motion carried

Announcements:

(A) Upcoming Seminars
City Planner Gundlach informed the Commission that the City will enroll any interested commissioners
in any of the upcoming Government Training Service Seminars.

(B) Update on clearwire
It was reported that Clearwire has informed the City that they are unable to build the pole that they
originally planned to. They can build a 39” diameter pole, which is 9 inches larger than the original
approved pole. Staff will bring the item to the City Council at some future date.
Commissioner Zisla noted the approval was based on a specific design, and is not in agreement with
Clearwire to approach the City stating they can build an alternative design. City Planner Gundlach stated
Clearwire will likely have to go through the approval process again.

Adjournment:
Motion by Commissioner Danger, seconded by Commissioner Alvey to adjourn the meeting.

7 Ayes, 0 Nays, Motion Carried

Meeting adjourned at 9:20PM


















































































































































